ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES COWM TTEE
April 18, 2001
3:45 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Torgerson, Chair
Senator Rick Hal ford

Senator Pete Kelly

Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Kim El ton

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Drue Pearce, Vice Chair
Senat or CGeorgi anna Lincoln

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS:

Commerci al Fisheries Entry Conm ssion - M. Bruce Twonl ey
Board of Gane - M. WIliam Dennerlein, M. Ben G ussendorf,

Dr. Julie Mier
Al aska G| and Gas Conservati on Conmm ssion - M. Julie Heusser

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-29, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAI RVAN JOHN TORGERSON called the Senate Resources Conmttee
nmeeting to order at 3:45 p.m and announced the commttee would
start with the confirmation hearing for M. Bruce Twoni ey,
Commerci al Fisheries Entry Conm ssion (CFEC).

MR. BRUCE TWOWMLEY, CFEC, said he woul d be happy to respond to any
guestions nenbers may have.

CHAI RMVAN TORGERSON asked M. Twomey if he planned any nmajor
changes at the CFEC during the upcom ng year.

MR. TWOMLEY said no maj or changes are planned. He noted, "W woul d
just like to get through the work in front of us.”

SENATOR TAYLOR asked about the status of the shrinp fishery.
SENATE RES COWM TTEE -1- April 18, 2001



MR, TWOMLEY responded:

The limtation is conplete. Because the point systemis a
fairly sinple point system we have actually al nost
conpl eted adjudi cations. There are at this point about
309 permits on the street. About half of those permts
are non-transferable permts, which fulfills what was our
hope and sone of the fishernen's hope at the begi nning of
that process. As you know, the nunbers got inflated the
way it evolved. Having alnost half of the permts non-
transferable nmeans that over tinme those permts will be
retired and di sappear fromthe fishery. W also note, and
this is encouraging, although there were sone 186
i ndi vidual s participating in the fishery just prior to
limtation, at this point the nunbers of actual
partici pants has dropped below that. So we have only 160
participants participating in the fishery currently.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked why the CFEC did not include a hardship
provision for the shrinp fishery as it has for other fisheries.

MR. TWOMLEY said he had |engthy conversations with M. Collier
regarding this concern and that:

The commission in sone of its earlier point systens,
particularly the salnmon fisheries, had a provision
| abel ed * unavoi dabl e circunstances’ where in being ranked
agai nst other fishernen who were conpeting for the sane
permts, a fisherman could basically make an excuse for
not having participated, but still be awarded the points
they would have gotten if they had participated. There
was a point when the comm ssion thought this was a fair
way to go even though it wasn't required by statute. It's
not one of the requirenents for a point system but it
wasn't sonething that was enployed in all the fisheries
prior to 1988. Since 1988, in all the fisheries we have
limted, we have not enployed it at all, because we found
it tended to create sone opportunities for fraud. It's
very hard to eval uate what sonmebody woul d have done, but
for sonme other circunstance that may or [may] not have
prevented them from going fishing. There are so nany
reasons for not going fishing in a given season, it's
very hard to be confident that we can really get a handl e
on that issue through adjudications. So, it was an issue
that led itself to fraud in sone cases and tended to sl ow
down the adjudi cation process trenendously as you waded
through all those cases and other fishernmen had to wait

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 18, 2001



for further adjudications to find out where they stood.
What we have tried to do in place of that and it's
sonething we did in the shrinp point system we made a
point in the point systemof insuring that someone didn't
have to fish all of the years to get all of the points
avai |l abl e..so they woul dn't be prejudiced if they mssed a
few years because of sone intervening circunstance. As a
result we have been able to get through those
adjudications in record tine...So, we're very close to
wrappi ng up that fishery today.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked how CFEC determnes a valid |l anding of a given
anount of fish if there is a dispute with ADF&G

MR. TWOMLEY replied that they rely initially on the direct reports
from ADF&G which are conputerized. CFEC can come up with a fina

point award at a glance |ooking at that data. He explained, "If
that data tells us, as it does in sone cases, that there was a
fisheries violation that led to a confiscation of the catch by Fish
and Wldlife Protection officers, we will not credit that toward a
permt."

He added that the individual may contest that determ nation and
then he or she has a chance to prove that the conputerized
information is wong.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what CFEC does if it's not confiscated.
MR, TWOMLEY replied:

If it's not confiscated, it's normally invisible to us.

It normally represents a |l ess serious violation. Those
are violations that aren't recorded in Fish and Gane fish
ti cket data and consequently nothing has been triggered
on our end. If you |look back at the history of limted
entry and adjudications, there are undoubtedly many cases
of individuals who had those m nor violations that were
invisible to the comm ssion and they have gotten credit

for that fishing and have gotten permts. Were that has
|l ed us, as in the case pointed out by M. Collier, when
fishermen are singled out and soneone has pointed to them
saying there is a violation but it turns out to be a
simlar mnor violation, we haven't wanted to single
those individuals out for the nore serious treatnent that

we give nore serious violations, because it woul d appear
to us to be violative of the anti-discrimnations
provisions in the authorizing section of our statute.

SENATOR ELTON said M. Twormey is an appointee that is rare, if not

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 18, 2001



uni que. He added, "He is a high-level appointee who has been
appoi nted by Governor Hammond, Governor Sheffield, CGovernor Cowper,

Governor Hickel and Governor Knowes. | don't know frankly if
there's anybody el se who's given us two decades of service in an
appoi nted position in a rather contentious arena. | think that says

sonet hi ng about the quality of the nom nee.”
Nunber 600

SENATOR HALFORD noved to forward M. Twomley's nane to the full
Senate for confirmation. There were no objections and it was so
or der ed.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON i ntroduced Ms. Julie Heusser, an appointee to
the Alaska O | and Gas Conservation Comm ssion (AOGCC).

M5. HEUSSER said that she is a life-long Al askan and has a degree
i n petrol eum engi neering. She said she really cares about what goes
on in Al aska. She has 20 years of practical experience with the oi
and gas industry.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON said his office made a few calls and that Ms.
Heusser cones highly recomrended.

SENATOR TAYLOR noved to pass Ms. Heusser's nane to the full Senate.
There were no objections and it was so ordered.

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON i ntroduced M. WIIliam Dennerl ein, an appointee
to the Board of Gane.

MR. W LLI AM DENNERLEIN said that he has lived in Al aska for 27
years. He is personally interested in the full spectrum of the uses
of wldlife. He worked for Governor Hamobnd as a State Park
Director; he worked in |ocal governnent; he worked with a private
corporation managi ng a comerci al fishing conpany; and now he is a
regional director for a private citizen organi zation.

CHAl RMVAN TORGERSON asked if he has any priorities he wants the
Board of Gane to address this year.

MR. DENNERLEIN answered that this is a very inportant time for
wildlife nmanagenent in the state. He hopes to see progress on a
nunber of fronts, such as Unit 19. He added, "W really need to
manage predators and we're going to need to manage them in
different ways.” He believes it is possible to rebuild noose
popul ations in a way that wll be acceptable to a large majority of
Al askans.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if his current enploynent is wth the
Nat i onal Parks and Conservation Associ ation (NPCA).

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- April 18, 2001



MR. DENNERLEIN answered it is.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if he woul d continue his enploynent there as
a nmenber of the Board of Gane.

MR, DENNERLEI N said he woul d. He said his organi zation had not nade
any proposals to the Board, but he would not vote on any if it did.

SENATOR HALFORD sai d some of the upcom ng proposals have to do with
the north side of McKinley Park and cl osing hunting and trappi ng on
state land in Units 19 and 20. He asked M. Dennerlein to comment
on those proposals.

MR. DENNERLEIN said [he] would not want the wolves in Unit 19
killed, but in the MG ath area [he] woul d i npose predator control
and nmake sonme changes in subsistence hunting. He explained, "W're
going to try to reduce the inpact of bears, wolves and human take
and that's all going to be part of that plan.” He told nenbers the
Board | ooked at proposals in Unit 20 regarding the Stanpede Road in
Novenber. He didn't think the board has to elimnate hunting or
trappi ng al toget her but the boundary is unmanageabl e so the board
has been di scussing ways to nake it nore manageabl e. However, he
believes that is not a reason to overreach into | ocal hunting and
subsi st ence.

SENATOR HALFORD asked if he supports the elimnation of subsistence
trapping of wolves in the Savage River to Stanpede Trail area on
the north side of MKinley Park.

MR. DENNERLEIN said he does not and stated, "I think in smnal
zones, sone people would be willing to elimnate the taking of
specific species, not trapping for wolves. The taking of a wolf
[indisc.] in one given zone and that | would support. That doesn't
nmean steps for lynx, fur bearers, and all the other subsistence
activities."

SENATOR HALFORD sai d he asked about subsistence trappi ng of wol ves
in an area that the congressional and state del egations fought very
hard to maintain open to trapping. [The National Parks and
Conservation Association] opposed that in the 1980 act, but the
state was successful in keeping it open and now it appears there
may be an effort to close it. He said they are, "tal king about the
subsi stence trapping by local rural residents and it seens
i nconsistent with the position of the state and the entire federal
managenent structure when MKinl ey Park was expanded and its nane
changed. "

MR, DENNERLEI N responded that he thought this is the one particul ar
area that is nentioned in the intent |anguage in the bill on the
addition to the park. He said it's inportant for people to know
that there isn't any kind of agenda to change the bal ance and

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 18, 2001



pur poses of what the federal act said about parks and preserves -
they are supposed to protect the land and the integrity of
wi |l derness and wldlife species dependent on wlderness. The
purpose section of the act says, "to provide opportunities for
rural residents engaged in subsistence to continue to do so."

MR. DENNERLEIN said he didn't think it was inconsistent to take a
speci fic managenent action that my have a |ot of additional
benefits for the state. He saw the sinple introduction of the
wol ves in Yellowstone change the econony of a nunber of the
comunities. It increased the flow of dollars into those
comunities and Denali plays an enornous role in our econony,;
peopl e consistently visit to see bears and wol ves.

SENATOR HALFORD asked, "I guess it's okay to have customary and
tradi ti onal dependence on a species that hasn't been there for 100
year s?"

MR. DENNERLEIN said he believes it wll becone nore and nore
inportant that the boards cooperate on habitat issues and keep
|l ooking for quality habitat access that can sustain the
popul ations. He said the board needs to communicate with | andowners
so they can work together to produce nore aninals.

Number 2200
SENATOR TAYLOR asked how | ong he has been a spokesnman for the NPCA

MR. DENNERLEI N responded that he has been a representative since
1993.

SENATOR TAYLOR said, "In just the last couple of years, you, as
their spokesman, sent out a nail menbership solicitation indicating
that wolf hunting and trapping threatened the viability of Al aska's
wol f popul ation. That seens contrary to the statenents you have
just nmade. In addition to that, you are one of the advocates for
this association, which puts out a docunment entitled ‘National Park
Activist Quide,’” which explains the need to create enotional appea
and then gives a case study exanple of a very successful enotional
canpaign that was distorted, but was very conpelling in its
effectiveness.” He asked if that is what M. Dennerlein is giving
the comm ttee today.

MR, DENNERLEI N answered that he hadn't seen any literature in which
the NPCA said [wolf hunting and trapping] threatens the viability

of the wolf population in Alaska. He stated, "If you have that, 1'd
love to see it. If it's dated, we'll make sure it gets buried
forever. It's incorrect and |'ve never said that.”" He said his

organi zati on has an activist guide, which he works on, but if that
statenment is nade soneplace, he would like an opportunity to
correct it.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 18, 2001



TAPE 01-29, SIDE B

SENATOR TAYLOR said the Governor has repeatedly nmade it a criterion
for appointnment to this board that only "publicly acceptable
nmethods will be used for predator managenent." He asked if M.
Dennel ei n adheres to that principle.

MR. DENNERLEIN said he does and that he doesn't think shoving a
program down people's throats is a good idea. He added, "Publicly
accept abl e does not nmean everybody and there will always be people
that will not abide by any act of wildlife nmanagenent. People w |
accept managenent if it's clearly defined..

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if he doesn't want to do any predator contro
until the gane popul ation was so beaten down that none of the
people in the area could even hunt themany nore and wait for the
subsi st ence people who need the animals to cone forward and prom se
they won't hunt them any nore. He said he was frustrated by M.
Dennerlein’s answer and the situation that he thinks is going on.
He asked M. Dennerlein which nmethods of gane nanagenent are
publicly acceptable.

MR. DENNERLEIN said a variety of nethods could be wused in
conbi nation. Lethal control is justified in some cases, but it
doesn't nean that is should be used all of the tine every year.
Thi s cannot be perceived as a war on predators. He said you have to
be careful with poisoning, because it's non-sel ective. Denning has
its place also, and, in some cases, expanding trapping seasons
wor ks better.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON t hanked M. Dennerlein for his coments and
announced M. Ben Gussendorf as an appointee to the Board of Gane.

Number 1900

MR. BEN GRUSSENDCRF, testifying via tel econference, apol ogized for
not being at the neeting in person. He said he enjoys the work, the
subject and the people who are interested in the issues he is
interested in. He noted that 85 percent of the tine, the board has
vot ed unani nmously on issues and he believes that is remarkable for
a seven-person board. The other 15 percent of the votes were not on
a single subject, area or species. The one area where there was a
di sagreenent anong board nenbers was on the use of notorized
vehi cl es, such as snowmpbil es, airboats and jet boats.

SENATOR KELLY asked what he thought about the Board's tools being
acceptable to the public.

MR. GRUSSENDORF responded that what is wunderstandable is a
difficult question, but he intended to put out sonething that was

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- April 18, 2001



under st andabl e even though it mght not be |liked by sone parties,
as wth predator control. H s argunments have not been whether there
should be predator control, but who should be doing it. He
mai ntains that it should be the Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane
(ADF&G) or its agents.

SENATOR KELLY said he introduced a bill three years ago that
al l oned ADF&G to | and and shoot, which was not allowed under the
1996 initiative. One provision he put in the bill was that only
ADF&G or its agents would be allowed to | and and shoot. He asked
M. Gussendorf why he voted against it at the time and why he
suggested an anendnent to renove "or their agents" fromthe bill

MR. GRUSSENDORF said he has noved from that in relation to
i ntensi ve ganme nmanagenent in Area 19 and perhaps sone ot her areas.
He al so had sonme concerns about the terrain in Unit 19D.

CHAI RMVAN TORGERSON i ndicated there were no further questions and
noted that M. Gussendorf was getting off easy. He then introduced
Dr. Julie Maier as an appointee to the Board of Gane.

DR, JULIE MAIER said she has a variety of skills, education and
know edge that woul d make her valuable to the Board of Gane. She
has a commtnment to public service and |oves people. Most
inmportantly, she is dedicated to the resource, its health, and
|l ong-term viability. She believes that humans are a natural
conponent of the ecosystem

SENATOR KELLY asked Dr. Maier to explain her stand on predator
control and public opinion in Unit 19D East.

DR. MAI ER responded that she was “beaten on” over a petition to
close an area of the state to protect sone wolf pups, which she
voted against. She thought the state could do a better job of
educating the public with a well thought-out program She would
support wolf control in the area of McGath wi thout question.
SENATOR KELLY asked if she would support |ethal predator control.
DR. MAI ER answered, "Absolutely."

SENATOR KELLY asked if she would support it now.

DR. MAI ER answered, "Absolutely."

SENATOR KELLY asked if it would happen this w nter.

DR. MAI ER answered, "I hope so."

SENATOR KELLY noted that the Governor is tal king about nore studies
and that area cannot afford to spend another five mnutes on

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 18, 2001



studi es. Hecomment ed, " Sonmebody has got to go shoot a wolf. Are you
going to do that?"

DR. MAI ER agreed, "There are only so many studies you can do."
Number 1000

SENATOR TAYLOR asked for a description of North Atlantic
oscillation.

M5. MAIER explained that it's the novenent of wind fromthe Wstern
Hem sphere in North Anerica to Europe and it affects the weather
both here and in Europe.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if it was driven by the EIl N no effect.

DR. MAIER replied the North Atlantic oscillation is believed to be
part of a northern hem spheric process and is the driving force
behind | arge weather patterns. El Nino is a periodic event that
just shows up sonetines here and there. The North Atlantic
oscillation is constant although it changes direction.

SENATOR TAYLOR said that Penn State [studied] the North Atlantic
oscillation and its effect on elk in Afognak and asked what they
could tell by the study and what difference it woul d nake since the
el k are a planted speci es.

DR. MAIER replied that it was a curiosity. She explained that
researchers could plug in popul ation nunbers from any speci es over
the course of 12 years in this nodel. In the case of Afognak, they
found that female el k were nore susceptible to harsh winters. The
i ce and snow depth have a significant inpact on the animals on the
gr ound.

SENATOR TAYLOR sai d bet ween August and Septenber of |ast year, Dr.
Mai er lectured on wildlife topics including the effects of gl obal
warm ng on the population dynamcs of elk in Al aska. He asked if
those | ectures were based on the Afognak el k

M5. MAIER replied they were because it is the one popul ation that
she had conti nuous data on.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented that she also |l ectured on the subject of
cari bou responses to disturbance of low altitude jet aircraft
overflights, which he thought seenmed "awful esoteric.”

DR. MAIER replied that the Air Force hired the University and AVR
Inc. to investigate the effects of Air Force jets on caribou for an
ElS. They did the sanme project on desert big horned sheep and white
tailed or nule deer in Arizona. She found that caribou were
sensitive to jet noise during calving. The aninmals that got very

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 18, 2001



hi gh doses of jet noise noved further than caribou that weren't
flown over. This could cause problens |ike separation of nother and
calf and increased predation rates. Fol ks in Canada found a hi gher
nortality rate of caribou calves from sustained overflights in
Canada.

Number 700

SENATOR TAYLOR asked what she thought was harder on a cari bou herd,
a pack of 50 wolves or a couple of jets that fly over it once a
week.

DR. MAIER replied that the wolves would be significantly nore
damagi ng.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked how wel|l the el k on Raspberry Island woul d do
if a pack of wolves was relocated there, like in Yell owstone Park

DR. MAIER said she didn't think they would do very well.
SENATOR TAYLOR sai d he appreci ated her candor.

SENATOR KELLY asked her to explain the McG ath package. He said he
wanted to know what the board is going to do this year because the
working group in McGrath cane up with a recommendation for further
studies. He asked if that report had been presented to the board
yet and what action it will take if it has.

DR. MAI ER said she got hold of the McGrath plan before the March
Board of Gane neeting but she didn't know if the whol e board got
it. She understands that future studies will include watching what
the effects of predator control are. There is a schedul ed neeting
for May 18 - 20, which is when there should be some proposals
before the board that relate to the McGath situation.

SENATOR KELLY asked what percentage of the pack the board intends
to take out and whet her that woul d happen this w nter.

DR. MAI ER answered that she thought the best tine to get out there
is during February and March when the weather is better. That is
when both wol f and noose counts take place. She didn't know if they
would do anything before that. They are going to do a calf
nortality study in May/June, which is part of the further research.
The board wants to know the exact nunbers of predation by wol ves
and bears. She thought they would take out about 12 percent of the
pack. She understands it would be from control areas where they
woul d take 100 percent of the wolves. Any wol ves that woul d stray
over the line into the control area would also be taken out. She
wasn’t sure what the percentages were in the adjoining areas.

SENATOR KELLY said it was about 12 npbose per wolf per year.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- April 18, 2001



DR MAIER said that is correct.

SENATOR KELLY said that was a |ot of npose and he didn't know if
the program would be worthwhile if they wait until February since
| ast year was such a tough year.

TAPE 01-30, SIDE A

SENATOR KELLY commented that wolves could run across a crust of
snow t hat the noose were stuck in. The remaining 1,400 aninmals in a
herd that once nunbered 6,000 could have very well have dropped
below 1,000 this year. He stated, "If there is another year I|ike
| ast year, by February if they start taking the pack out, what's
| eft of that herd may be so low, it's going to take 15 years to get
it up to a level of 2,500 nobose, which is far below the historic
hi gh of 5 or 6,000."

SENATOR ELTON noved to forward the nanes of Dr. WMiier, M.
Dennerlein and M. Gussendorf to the full Senate for a vote on
confirmation. There were no objections and it was so ordered.

There being no further business to cone before the commttee, VICE-
CHAI R KELLY adj ourned the neeting at 5:15 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- April 18, 2001



